1967

Intermountain Association of Credit Men v. F. C. Watterson et al. : Appellant's Brief

STATEMENT OF THE KIND OF CASE

The case which is the subject matter of this Appeal involves an action in the District Court of Salt Lake County, Utah, by the plaintiff and respondent, Intermountain Association of Credit Men, against the defendant and appellant, F. C. Watterson and his son-in-law, Rolfe Griffiths, to recover the balance purportedly due from the Silver Creek General Store in Picabo,

Idaho, to both Salt Lake Hardware Company and to Barwick and Company for goods, wares and merchandise sold and delivered to the Silver Creek General Store by said companies, and, which claims were assigned by said companies to the Intermountain Association of Credit Men.

DISPOSITION IN LOWER COURT

The case was tried in the District Court of Salt Lake County, Utah, before the Honorable Joseph G. Jeppson, District Judge, sitting without a jury on September 23, 1966. Judge Jeppson ruled that there was a partnership relationship between defendants Rolfe Griffiths and his father-in-law, defendant, F. C. Watterson, and, granted Judgment in favor of plaintiff and against defendant, F. C. Watterson. It is from this Judgment defendant F. C. Watterson appeals.

RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

Defendant-appellant F. C. Watterson seeks reversal of the Judgment against him and for Judgment in his favor.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

At the outset it should be pointed out that the designation in the Complaint of defendants Rolfe Griffiths and F. C. Watters as former partners doing business as the Silver Creek General Store is a misnomer

and completely misleading. This was one of the issues for the District Court to determine. They never were partners. Defendant Watterson only aided and assisted his daughter and son-in-law in the operation of the Silver Creek General Store as any loving, considerate parent would normally do.

Defendant Rolfe Griffiths is the husband of Mae Griffiths, who is the daughter of defendant F. C. Watterson. In the spring of 1960 Rolfe Griffiths and his wife, Mae Griffiths, took over and started operating the Silver Creek General Store in Picabo, Idaho. (R. 79). To enable them to get going in the business Rolfe and Mae Griffiths borrowed some cash and some bonds from defendant F. C. Watterson, their father and father-in-law. (R. 81). They, the Griffiths, operated the store for about a year. During the first six or seven months the Wattersons assisted them somewhat for which assistance Watterson was paid approximately \$400.00 per month in merchandise. (R. 110). Arrangements were made to have F. C. Watterson sign the store checks since Rolfe Griffiths was away from the store part of the time. (R. 91). However, in 1960, F. C. Watterson and his wife left the State of Idaho and returned to Salt Lake City, Utah. (R. 107, 144, 172 & 193). Rolfe Griffiths and his wife, Mae Griffiths, continued to operate the store until about May of 1961. (R. 172).

The Silver Creek General Store got into financial difficulties. As a consequence of these financial diffi-

culties, in 1961, both Salt Lake Hardware Company and Barwick and Company sued defendants Rolfe Griffiths and F. C. Watterson in the District Court of the Fourth Judicial District Court of the State of Idaho in and for Blaine County designating them in those actions as co-partners doing business under the name and style of Silver Creek General Store. In those actions Salt Lake Hardware obtained Judgment against them on August 22, 1961, and, Barwick and Company obtained Judgment against them on September 1, 1961. The claims of these two companies were assigned to Intermountain Association of Credit Men, who, on May 9, 1962, filed an action against these defendants in the District Court of Salt Lake County, Utah, in a case entitled: Intermountain Association of Credit Men, Plaintiff, vs. Rolfe Griffiths and F. C. Watterson, f/d/b/a Silver Creek General Store, Defendants. Civil No. 136508. (Exhibit 11).

While the proceedings in Civil No. 136508 (Exhibit 11) in the District Court of Salt Lake County, Utah, were still pending, and, approximately a year and one-half after the filing of that case, the Intermountain Association of Credit Men filed another lawsuit against these same defendants, this cause, Civil No. 145459, in the District Court of Salt Lake County, Utah, which cause is the subject matter of this Appeal. Since two cases involving the very same relief were pending at the same time against these defendants, Motions to dismiss Civil No. 136508 (Exhibit 11) were made by both plaintiff and defendants, and, on March

27, 1964, Judge Aldon J. Anderson made and entered an Order dismissing Civil No. 136508 as to defendant R. C. Watterson, *with prejudice*. (Exhibit 11).

Subsequently, at the Pretrial of the case which is the subject matter of this Appeal, Civil No. 145459, Judge Stewart M. Hanson took under advisement defendant F. C. Watterson's Motion to dismiss Civil No. 145459, on the grounds of *res judicata*, since Civil No. 136508 had previously been dismissed with prejudice on March 27, 1964. (R. 12 & 13). Then on December 13, 1965, Judge Stewart M. Hanson made and entered his "Findings, Conclusions and Judgment" granting defendant F. C. Watterson Judgment in his favor against plaintiff, dismissing the said cause in Civil No. 145459 with prejudice as to defendant F. C. Watterson. (R. 14 & 15). On a Motion for a New Trial and in a Memorandum Decision dated January 20, 1966, Judge Hanson set aside the Judgment of December 13, 1965, and, the case which is the subject matter of this Appeal, Civil No. 145459, was set for Trial and thereafter tried before the Honorable Joseph G. Jeppson, District Judge, without a jury on September 23, 1966.

During the trial of this cause which is the subject matter of this Appeal and after plaintiff had rested, defendant F. C. Watterson made a Motion to dismiss the cause against him on the following grounds: (a) The Complaint failed to state a cause of action against him; (b) The matter was *res judicata* for the reason

the plaintiff previously filed an action in Civil No. 136508 (Exhibit 11) against him involving the same parties and the same accounts which was heard by the Court and dismissed with prejudice; and, (c) That there was not clear and convincing evidence to establish a partnership upon which the Court could grant a Judgment against defendant F. C. Watterson. (R. 76). Judge Jeppson denied this Motion.

Finally and at the conclusion of the Trial and after both parties had rested their cases and submitted and argued the matter, Judge Jeppson ruled that there was a partnership between defendants Rolfe Griffiths and his father-in-law, defendant F. C. Watterson, and granted Judgment in favor of plaintiff and against defendant F. C. Watterson.

Defendant-appellant F. C. Watterson makes his Appeal to the Supreme Court of Utah and in connection therewith seeks reversal of the Judgment against him and for Judgment in his favor.

ARGUMENT

POINT I. THE CASE SHOULD HAVE BEEN DISMISSED AGAINST DEFENDANT F. C. WATTERSON ON THE GROUNDS OF "RES JUDICATA".

The only basis upon which Judgment legally could be rendered against defendant-appellant F. C. Watterson is that either there was an actual partnership or

a partnership by estoppel existing between F. C. Watterson and his son-in-law, defendant Rolfe Griffiths, in connection with the operation of the Silver Creek General Store in Picabo, Idaho.

Assuming that there was such a relationship, the case against defendant F. C. Watterson, which is the subject matter of this Appeal, should have been dismissed with prejudice.

Plaintiff's assignors, Salt Lake Hardware Company and Barwick and Company, had already sued said defendants Rolfe Griffiths and F. C. Watterson in the State of Idaho and obtained Judgments against them. Their claims, arising out of the operation of the Silver Creek General Store, were assigned to the Intermountain Association of Credit Men, the plaintiff-respondent herein. That company thereupon filed an action against both of said defendants in the District Court of Salt Lake County, Utah, in Civil No. 136508 (Exhibit 11). That action, involving the claims of Salt Lake Hardware Company and Barwick and Company, was dismissed as to defendant-appellant F. C. Watterson, *with prejudice*, on March 27, 1964. (Exhibit 11).

The doctrine of "res judicata" is a universal doctrine recognized by all jurisdictions. It is based on the fundamental proposition that *a party who has litigated or who has had an opportunity to litigate a matter* should not be permitted to litigate it again to the harrassment or vexation of his opponent. This doctrine is adhered to by the decisions in this jurisdic-

tion which prohibit the "splitting" of a cause of action. It is expressly recognized by the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure which provide in part in Rule 8 (a) as follows:

" . . . Relief in the alternative or of several different types may be demanded."

The reasons and rationale which underlie this pervading rule of law are well set forth in 30A Am. Jur., Judgments, Sec. 376, p. 373, as follows:

" . . . Public policy and the interest of litigants alike require that there be an end to litigation which, without the doctrine of res judicata would be endless. The doctrine of res judicata rests upon the ground that the party to be affected, or some other with whom he is in privity, has litigated, or had an opportunity to litigate, the same matter in a former action in a court of competent jurisdiction, and should not be permitted to litigate it again to the harrassment and vexation of his opponent. The doctrine of res judicata not only puts an end to strife, but produces certainty as to individual rights and gives dignity and respect to judicial proceedings." (Emphasis supplied).

The parties and cause of action set forth in Civil No. 136508 and Civil No. 145459 in the District Court of Salt Lake County, Utah, against defendants Rolfe Griffiths and F. C. Watterson were the same. In each instance the claims arose out of the operation of the Silver Creek General Store in Picabo, Idaho, by the said defendants as partners or as partners by estoppel

according to the allegations of plaintiff in the Complaints which it filed.

The doctrine of "res judicata" prohibits one from maintaining successive suits against the same defendant on different theories of relief. As set forth in Freeman on Judgments, 5th Ed. Sec. 684, pp. 1443-44:

" . . . The application of the doctrine of res judicata to identical causes of action does not depend upon the identity or differences of the forms of the two actions. A Judgment upon the merit bars a subsequent suit upon the same cause, though brought in a different form of action, and a party therefore cannot, by varying the form of action or adopting a different method of presenting his case, escape the principle that one and the same cause of action shall not be twice litigated."

In Civil No. 136580 plaintiff-respondent did have an opportunity to litigate the claims of Salt Lake Hardware Company and Barwick and Company which had been assigned to it on any possible theory it wanted to present, including the theory it subsequently set forth in Civil No. 145459, the subject matter of this Appeal. Having chosen not to amend its complaint in Civil No. 136580, but, having chosen voluntarily to file an entirely new action almost a year and one half later in Civil No. 145459, it is bound by the doctrine of "res judicata" and the ruling made by the District Court on March 27, 1964, in Civil No. 136580, which ruling it chose not to appeal.

In applying the doctrine of "res judicata" it is sometimes proper to presume a judgment to have been rendered on the merits in the absence of words of qualification. See in this connection 30A Am. Jur., Judgments, Sec. 469, p. 511, wherein it is said:

" . . . In some cases it is held proper to presume a judgment to have been rendered upon the merits where it is unaccompanied by words of qualification such as "without prejudice," or other terms indicating a right or privilege to take further legal proceedings on the subject."

However, it is conclusive and needs no presumption at all where the judgment of dismissal is "with prejudice" as was the case in the Order in Civil No. 136508. (Exhibit 11). This is particularly so when viewed in light of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure which were in force and applicable at the time. When the Order of dismissal with prejudice was made and entered in Civil No. 136508 on March 27, 1964, Rule 41 (b) of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure provided in the part particularly applicable to the situation before this Court as follows:

" . . . a dismissal under this subdivision and any dismissal not provided for in this rule, other than a dismissal for lack of jurisdiction or for improper venue, operates as an adjudication upon the merits." (Emphasis supplied).

Subsequently, both the District Court and the Supreme Court of Utah amended Rule 41 (b) to be effective

October 1, 1965, so as to make the applicable portion of that Rule read as follows:

“ . . . a dismissal under this subdivision and any dismissal not provided for in this rule, other than a dismissal for lack of jurisdiction or for improper venue or for lack of an indispensable party, operates as an adjudication upon the merits.”

The case which plaintiff-respondent filed against defendant appellant F. C. Watterson in Civil No. 136-508 was not dismissed *with prejudice* for “lack of jurisdiction”, for “improper venue” or, for “lack of an indispensable party”. Accordingly, in light of Rule 41 (b) as it read previously and as it recently has been amended to read by the District Court and by the Supreme Court of Utah, the *dismissal with prejudice* of Civil No. 136508 was “an adjudication upon the merits”. Further action by plaintiff in Civil No. 145459, the subject matter of this Appeal, was and is precluded by the doctrine of “res judicata”.

As set forth in 30A Am. Jur., Judgments, Sec. 363:

“ . . . The phase of the doctrine of res judicata precluding subsequent litigation of the same cause of action is much broader in its application than a determination of the questions involved in the prior action; *the conclusiveness of the judgment in such case extends not only to matters actually determined, but also to other matters which could properly have been determined in the prior action.* (Olwell vs. Hopkins, 28 Cal.

2d 147, 168 P2d 972; Colburn vs. Goodall, 72 Cal. 498, 14 P. 190). *This rule applies to every question falling within the purview of the original action, in respect to matters of both claim and defense which could have been presented by the exercise of diligence.* There is authority that even where the causes of action are different, the prior determination of litigated issues is conclusive in a subsequent suit not only as to the issue itself, but also as to every matter that might have been urged for or against that issue in its determination. . . ” (Emphasis supplied).

The rulings by the Supreme Court of Utah are entirely consistent with the foregoing general law and judicial decisions. The District Court of Salt Lake County should have dismissed the action which is the subject matter of this Appeal against defendant-appellant F. C. Watterson. See in this connection the following: Dorsett vs. Morse, Utah, 103 Pac. 969; Glen Allen Mining Co. vs. Park Galena, 77 Utah 362, 296 Pac. 321; East Mill Creek Water Co. vs. Salt Lake City, 108 Utah 315, 159 P2d 863; and, Ray vs. Consolidated Freightways, 4 Utah 2d 137, 289 P2d 196.

POINT II. THERE IS NO CLEAR AND CONVINCING EVIDENCE IN THE RECORD OF A PARTNERSHIP BETWEEN ROLFE GRIFFITHS AND F. C. WATTERSON IN THE OPERATION OF THE SILVER CREEK GENERAL STORE UPON WHICH THE COURT COULD GRANT A JUDGMENT AGAINST DEFENDANT-APPELLANT F. C. WATTERSON.

The Court's attention is respectfully invited to the Findings of Fact upon which the Judgment against defendant-appellant F. C. Watterson is based. The only finding made as to either an "actual" partnership or a partnership by estoppel is that set forth in Finding of Fact No. 1, reading as follows:

"That there was a partnership between the Defendant F. C. Watterson and Rolfe Griffiths, doing business as Silver Creek General Store, at all times referred to in Plaintiff's Complaint".

It is respectfully submitted that this is not a "finding of fact" but merely a "conclusion of law" not based on any recited facts. Apparently the reason no facts were recited is that there are no facts constituting clear and convincing evidence upon which the legal conclusion of a partnership could be based.

It is interesting to observe in this connection that apparently counsel for plaintiff-respondent also recognized that there were no such facts. In his concluding argument to the District Court (not reported) he very strongly and almost exclusively urged that even if the facts did not show an actual partnership between Rolfe Griffiths and F. C. Watterson, Judgment nevertheless should be granted in favor of plaintiff and against F. C. Watterson on the basis of a partnership by estoppel. A partnership by estoppel could not be relied upon, however, because in the first place it was not pleaded. Furthermore, defendant F. C. Watterson specifically denied that there was a partnership. (R. 10).

With reference to the matter of a partnership by estoppel it is set forth in 31 C.J.S., Estoppel, Sec. 153 (1), Necessity for Pleading, at page 743, that:

“Estoppel ordinarily must be specially pleaded, whether it is relied on as a defense or as an element of a cause of action.”

See also the rulings of this Court in the following cases: Campbell vs. Nunn, 78 Utah 316, 2 P2d 899; Tracy Loan & Trust Co. vs. Openshaw Inv. Co., 102 Utah 509, 132 P2d 388; Lagoon Co. vs. Utah State Fair Ass'n., 117 Utah 213, 214 P2d 614; and, Collett vs. Goodrich, 119 Utah 662, 231 P2d 730.

As to the evidence in the record concerning any actual partnership between Rolfe Griffiths and F. C. Watterson, both Rolfe Griffiths and F. C. Watterson denied that there was such a partnership. (R. 81, 95, 96 and 104). Mae Griffiths and Mae Waterson, the wives of the respective defendants, also denied that there was such a partnership. (R. 142, 143, 200, 201 and 202).

The strongest evidence in the record as to a purported actual partnership between Rolfe Griffiths and F. C. Watterson is the testimony of J. Heber Reese, the Treasurer of Salt Lake Hardware Company. His actual testimony and the other evidence in the record belies the claim that there ever was a partnership or that the question of a partnership relationship was ever relied upon in the extension of credit.

Mr. Reese testified that there was a meeting in the Salt Lake Hardware store in early 1960 when purportedly Mr. Watterson, his son-in-law, Rolfe Griffiths, and his daughter, came in to talk to them and make arrangements for credit at the store. (R. 33). He testified further that he extended credit to the Silver Creek General Store for and on behalf of Salt Lake Hardware based almost entirely upon the financial information furnished at that meeting and which he set down in his own handwriting in a document entitled "Credit Interview". (Exhibit 1). His testimony with reference to this as set forth in the Transcript at page 26 (R. 55) is as follows:

Q. Can you tell us whose decision whether or not credit is extended?

A. Mine.

Q. In this case you did decide to have the company extend credit, in this case?

A. Yes.

Q. What facts did you rely on in making this decision?

A. Almost entirely upon the financial information (which) was furnished to us.

Shortly after this testimony there was a five minute recess. During the recess Mr. Henriksen, one of the attorneys for plaintiff-respondent, discussed this testimony with him, and, when the Court reconvened, Mr. Reese then testified as follows: (See Transcript 28, 29 —R. 57, 58).

Q. Mr. Reese, I asked you upon what information you relied, you indicated the financial information received, and I asked you if you would list for us, or itemize for us the information you referred to.

MR. HENRIKSEN (should be MR. ALSTON): I object as repetitious.

THE COURT: Overruled. You may answer.

Q. (MR. MURDOCK): Would you answer the question?

A. What was the question?

Q. If you would list for us the information you are referring to whom you said you relied upon it.

THE COURT: What you relied on to extend credit.

A. The credit extension was given based upon the financial statement that I had made out by hand, plus the confirmation from Dun & Bradstreet, this was a partnership, which we cleared on each new account we open, plus, I think we tried to clear with Inter-mountain's report, but they did not have one. *It was based upon the financial statements given us, and the confirmation from Dun & Bradstreet that (it) was a partnership.* (Emphasis supplied).

F. C. Watterson denied that he was ever at that meeting as did his wife, Mae Watterson, and, so did Rolfe Griffiths and his wife, Mae Griffiths. (R. 80, 86, 100, 103, 121, 139, 172, 183 and 192).

The assets referred to in the financial statement which was testified to by Mr. Reese are solely those assets belonging to Rolfe Griffiths and Mae Griffiths, his wife, except an item of \$1,600.00 in bonds and an item of \$3,000.00 in cash, which said items it is uncontradicted were loaned to Rolfe Griffiths and Mae Griffiths by their father-in-law and father, defendant-appellant F. C. Watterson.

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