1967

## Intermountain Association of Credit Men v. F. C. Watterson et al. : Respondent's Brief

STATEMENT OF THE KIND OF CASE

This is a case wherein the Plaintiff sues upon  
an account for goods sold and delivered to an all-  
eged partner, his for advance cost.

DISPOSITION IN LOWER COURT

The Honorable Justice Joseph C. Jeppson, Dis-  
tinguished, sitting without jury found in favor of

**Plaintiff-Respondent against the Defendant-Appellant, F.C. Watterson as prayed (the Defendant Rolphe Griffiths had earlier filed bankruptcy)**

### **RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL**

**The Plaintiff-Respondent seeks to have the Judgment of the trial Court affirmed.**

### **STATEMENT OF FACTS**

**The Appellant has cited controverted testimony which is favorable only to his position as fact contrary to Court rules. As a result of this Appellants statement of facts is misleading and consequently the Respondent offers the following statement of facts:**

**The Plaintiff commenced an action in the District Court for Salt Lake County on May 9, 1962 upon an earlier Idaho Judgment. This case was entitled Civil No. 136508. After this action was commenced it was discovered that the service upon Mr. Watterson was not proper and**

the Judgment entered by the Idaho Court was invalid. Consequently the instant case was commenced upon the theory of contract between the assignors of Plaintiff and the Silver Creek General Store, a Partnership, for goods sold and delivered. Defendant moved to dismiss this latter action. The Plaintiff then moved to dismiss its own first action based upon the Idaho Judgment and both cases were heard at the same time. Judge Aldon J. Anderson dismissed the prior action and allowed the instant case to proceed.

At Pre-trial of this matter, Judge Hanson dismissed Plaintiff's complaint upon the grounds of res Judicata. Upon motion of the Plaintiff the matter was re-heard and the parties submitted memorandums. Judge Hanson reversed his earlier ruling and ordered the case to proceed to trial.

At the trial, there was substantial evidence that the Defendant F.C. Watterson joined with his son-in-law in a partnership known as Silver Creek General Store, (R 34,35) That they applied for credit to Salt Lake Hardware (R 34); that credit was extended (R 40); that goods were supplied to the partnership; Several documents introduced and received into evidence show the existence of partnership between the two ( Exhibits 1, 2,3,4,20) and that there was unpaid the amount that was ultimately reduced to Judgment ( Exhibit 4)

The Defendant and his witnesses ( his wife, his daughter, and his son-in-law) offered much testimony in conflict with that offered by the Plaintiff, but it is interesting that much of the actual evidence of the partnership was elicited by cross examination from the Defendants witnesses and there are many conflicts within their testimony as will be further pointed out in Argument # 2.



Judge Jeppson found that there was a partnership, that there had been goods sold and delivered to the partnership in the amounts prayed; and that the accounts had been duly assigned . After the evidence, Mr. Alston moved the Court among other things, to dismiss upon the grounds of res judicata. This motion along with others was denied and judgment was accordingly entered.

It is from this judgment that Defendant appeals.

## ARGUMENT

**POINT 1. THE DOCTRINE OF " RES JUDICATA" IS INAPPLICABLE TO THIS CASE AND THE COURT RULED CORRECTLY IN DENYING DEFENDANT'S MOTION TO DISMISS.**

The Appellant makes several references in his brief to generalized statements from American Jurisprudence in support of his argument that the doctrine of " res judicata" is applicable to the facts of this case. The difficulty with this approach is the almost futile attempt to apply generalized encyclopedic law to a specific set of facts, which nearly always leads to an erroneous conclusion. Appellant makes reference, on Page 8 of his brief to a quotation from 30A Am.Jur., Judgments, Sec. 376, P. 373 ( which should be Sec. 326, P. 374) which states:

" ... the doctrine of res judicata rests upon the ground that the party to be affected, or some other with whom he is in privity has litigated, or had an opportunity to

litigate, the same matter in a former action in a court of competent jurisdiction, and should not be permitted to litigate it again to the harrassment and vexation of his opponent."

The really significant point here is whether or not the issues, matter or cause of action set forth in Civil No. 136509 and Civil No. 145459 were the same and whether or not there was any element of harrassment and vexation, and further, the significance of the Court's reason for dismissing the earlier action.

The application of this doctrine is limited to subsequent cases in which not only the same parties and subject matter appear, but also the same cause of action demand, or claim and where the issues involved are the same as in the prior case. When the issue, claim, demand, or cause of action is different, the general rule is that the doctrine of res judicata will not apply to bar the subsequent action.

The earlier action, Civil No. 136508 was an action based solely on an Idaho judgment, which subsequent to suit, was found by the Respondent to be wholly void for lack of jurisdiction. There had never been any hearing whatsoever on the merits of the case, either in Idaho or in Utah, and it was only after the invalidity of the Idaho judgment had been brought to the attention of Respondent's counsel that a new action, Civil No. 145459 was commenced to decide the merits of the case in a Court of competent jurisdiction.

In the two cases in question, there are really no common questions of fact, no common issues and certainly not the same cause of action, demand or claim. The first action only required proof of a valid Idaho judgment. There could be no inquiry as to the merits of the case itself, but only as to the effectiveness and validity of the judgment. In the second case, however, the issues were much different. There they turned around proof of an

agreement, performance of the terms of that agreement, agency, partnership, breach of agreement, etc. We submit that the cases decided in this State and else where have held the doctrine of res judicata inapplicable in similar situations.

Some of the Utah cases dealing with this problem are cited on Page 12 of Appellant's Brief, but a careful reading of these cases will lead to the conclusion that these cases are in support of Respondent's position, not the Appellant's.

In the case of Ray vs. Consolidated Freightways, 4 Utah 2nd, 137, 289 P2nd 197, the Court quoted from a United States Supreme Court case wherein Justice Field stated:

" But where a second action between the same parties is upon a different claim or demand, the Judgment in the prior action operates as an estoppel only as to those matters in issue or points controverted upon the determination of which the findings or verdict was rendered. In all cases therefore, where it is sought to apply the estoppel of a judgment rendered upon one

causes of action, to matters arising in a suit upon a different cause of action, the inquiry must always be to the point or question actually litigated and determined. Only upon such matters is the judgment conclusive in another action."  
Cromwell vs. Sacramento County 24 US 351, 24 L.Ed. 195 (Emphasis added)

In determining whether there are two separate issues, or causes of action, a test is set forth in 30 A Am. Jur.; Judgments, Sec. 368;

"... If, however, the two actions rest upon different states of facts, or if different proofs would be required to sustain the two actions, a judgment in one is no bar to the maintenance of the other. It has been said that this method is the best and most accurate test as to whether a former judgment is a bar in subsequent proceedings between the same parties and it has even been designated as infallible."

In 30 A Am. Jur. Judgments, Section 349, it is stated further:

"The doctrine of res judicata is not available as a bar to a subsequent action if the judgment in the former action was rendered because of a misconception of the remedy available ... The general rule is that a judgment against a Plaintiff in an action on an express contract because of a failure to prove the contract, or because the contract was unenforceable, is

not a bar to a subsequent action on the theory of quantum merit. Also, one who erroneously files an action on a quantum merit theory may not be precluded from maintaining an action on the theory of an express contract ..."

The Utah Code held in the case of *Dorset v. Morse* 103 P. 969, 36 Utah 362, that a pending action for goods sold and delivered did not preclude another action brought to foreclose a Mechanics Lien.

In the case of *Pemberton v. LaDeau*, 224 SW 2nd 363, 359 Mo. 907, Plaintiff brought one action on the Doctrine of quantum merit and failed and subsequently an action was brought alleging an express contract and the doctrine of res judicata was raised as a defense. The Court held that there were two separate and distinct causes of action and that res judicata was not available as a bar to the subsequent action. In the Utah case of *Glen Allen Mining Co. v. Park Galena*, 296 P 231 (1931) 77 Utah 362, a mortgagor brought suit

in the first action to set aside a sheriff's sale upon the grounds that the mortgagor's officer had purchased the property in his own name rather than in trust and the action to set aside the sheriff's sale failed. In a second action the mortgagor brought an action to declare the property to be held in trust for mortgagor and the issue of res judicata was raised. In that case, the Court held that res judicata was not a bar to the subsequent action, inasmuch as the same questions were not presented.

Also in point is the case of East Millicreek Water Company vs. Salt Lake City 108 Utah 315, 159 P 2d 863 (1945) the Plaintiff brought two successive actions sounding in declaratory judgment. The first action asked for the construction of certain provisions of the contract and later an action was brought to construe other provisions of the contract and the issue of res judicata was raised. The Court said :



"This contention overlooks the fact that there are two kinds of cases where the doctrine of res judicata is applied"

The quote went on to discuss the fact that res judicata applies if the claim, demand, or cause of action is the same and then stated:

" On the other hand, where the claim, demand or cause of action is different in the two cases then the former is res judicata only to the extent that the former actually raised and decided the same points and issues which are raised in the latter cases cited: "

In State vs. California Packing Co., 105 Utah 191, 145 P2d 784, the Utah Court was confronted with the effect of a dismissal of the Plaintiff's complaint with prejudice where the lower court had sustained a demurrer to Plaintiff's amended complaint and Plaintiff refused to plead further and a new action was filed. Our Court stated:

"The dismissal of Plaintiff's action although with prejudice, does not bar Plaintiff from maintaining another action against the Defendant based on the same facts alleged on the original complaint providing the new complaint supplies new and additional facts so that the

new complaint alleges different facts and states a cause of action. The dismissal of the action is with prejudice only to the extent that it determined once and for all that the complaint attacked by demurrer did not state facts sufficient to constitute a cause of action and bars the maintenance of a new action on the same facts which were alleged in the complaint which was dismissed." And also where ... "The complaint failed to allege some essential fact necessary to constitute a cause of action and another action is commenced wherein the essential allegation omitted in the first cause of action is fully supplied in the second, the judgment in the first cause of action is no bar to the second even though both suits were brought to enforce the same right and the Plaintiff in the first cause of action might have amended his complaint to include the omitted essential allegation. This for the reason that the merits of the cause as shown in the complaint in the 2nd action were not passed on in the first."

The reasons for the dismissal of the earlier case, Civil No. 136508, become particularly significant in light of the rationale set forth in 30 A Am. Jur. Judgments, Sec. 374, P 421, as follows:

**" As far as subsequent proceedings under a different cause of action are concerned, the doctrine of res judicata is held not to apply to issues raised in the previous case which were not passed on by the court or jury in deciding it ... Also, a judgment is not res judicata as to any matters which a court expressly refused to determine and which is directed should be litigated in another forum or in another action."**

**The authority cited in support of the last part of the foregoing quotation is the Utah case of Todara v. Gardner, 3 Utah 2nd 404, 285 P2nd 839.**

**The only issue that was ever before the Court in the earlier case, Civil No. 136508, was the validity of the Idaho judgment upon which suit was brought. After the facts became known, Respondent's counsel stipulated that the Idaho judgment was void for lack of jurisdiction and the lower court thereupon dismissed Civil No. 136508 and allowed the Respondent to proceed with Civil No. 145459. Both motions were held by the Court at the same time and thus the Court was fully advised in the premises.**

**Appellant sets forth on pages 11-12 of his brief**

what purports to be a quotation from 30 A Am. Jur. Judgments, Sec. 363. Actually, the quotation is taken from Section 372 and part of 373 but the Appellant failed to indicate the omitted portions of the quotation by the use of Ellipses and consequently, the quotation as it reads in Appellants brief, is misleading. For clarification, Sec. 372 and 373 are set forth hereafter with the omitted portions underlined:

**Sec. 373**

" The phase of the doctrine of res judicata precluding subsequent litigation of the same cause of action is much broader in its application than a determination of the questions involved in the prior action; the conclusiveness of the judgment in such a case extends not only to matters actually determined, but also to other matters which could properly have been determined in the prior action. This rule applies to every question falling within the purview of the original action, in respect to matters of both claim and defense which could have been presented by the exercise of due diligence."

**Sec. 373:**

" The rule granting conclusiveness to a judgment in regard to issues of fact which

could properly have been determined in the action is generally limited to cases involving the same cause of action. Where a second action is upon a different claim, demand or cause of action, the established rule is that the judgment in the first action operates as an estoppel only as to the points or questions actually litigated and determined and not as to matters not litigated in the former action, even though such matters might properly have been determined therein. Accordingly, the view is generally taken that before the doctrine of res judicata is applied in such cases, it should appear that the precise question involved in the subsequent action was determined in the former action. These rules prevail whether the judgment is used in pleading as a technical estoppel or is relied on by way of evidence as conclusive per se.

Although the general rule, that a judgment in a former action does not operate as an estoppel as to matters not litigated in the former action where the second action is on a different claim or cause, has appeared to have been literally applied in some cases, other cases have appeared to qualify the rule with respect to matters or questions within the particular issues adjudicated in the prior action. Thus, there is authority that even where the causes of action are different, the prior determination of a litigated issue is conclusive in a subsequent suit not only as to the issue itself, but also as to every matter that might have been argued for or against the issue in its determination ..."

An examination of Lectures 15, 17 and 18 to Sec. 375 will reveal that the Utah cases cited by Appellant in support of the foregoing law pertain to the omitted portions of the quotation and not to that portion quoted by Appellant which is actually a minority view, and at best, "a view limited," to matters or questions within the particular issues adjudicated."

It should be obvious that there has never been any harassment or vexation of the defendant and that only in the instant case has there ever been a consideration of the merits of the case. Certainly, great care should be taken to see that all cases are heard upon their merits and once heard, those issues should not again be brought before the Court. There is no doubt that the action of the Court in dismissing the first complaint was depositive and conclusive of the issue therein involved, i.e., the

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